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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Tata Power Trading Company
Limited (“the Company), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

S.R. Batlibor & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
Reqd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

°  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended,;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

i ~—— e N
Ny
per Sanjeev Kumar Singhal ! PR |
Partner . / , 7/;/,_)2 4
Membership Number: 095377 e 4
Place of Signature: New Delhi i

Date: April 16,2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of under the heading of “Report on other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Tata Power Trading Company Limited (“the Company”)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions
of section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans and advances given,
investments made and guarantees and securities given have been complied with by the
company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no loans given in respect of which provisions of section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
product/services of the Company.

(vii)(a) The Company is generally been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance are not applicable to
the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-
tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales-tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans. The Company did not have loans or
borrowings in respect of financial institutions or government or dues to debenture holders
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments.
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they
were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

[n our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the

related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of

the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,

2
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reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and, therefore not commented upon.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

\/gvv\/r\/ e Y
per Sanjeev Kumar Singhal ] OZ
Partner £t Rl
Membership Number: 095377
Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: April 16,2019
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TATA POWER TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Power Trading Company
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

| —
(}! anjeev Kumar Singhal

Partner o] é t 1}
Membership Number: 095377 ‘ o< i
Place of Signature: New Delhi )
Date: April 16,2019




Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2019

Notes As at As at
J1st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
(Restated-refer Note 24)
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 4,721.07 5,091.99
(b) Intangible Assets o) 122.86 209.37
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 - -
(d) Non-current Tax Assets (Net) 11 213.93 219.22
(e) Other Non-current Assets 2 8.00 8.40
Total Non-current Assets 5,065.86 ’ 5,528.98
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables % 56,608.78 14,749.32
(i) Unbilled Revenue and agency receivable 11,580.96 19,523.71
(iii) Cash and cash Equivalents 13 8.24 4.93
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 13 - 91.36
(v) Other financial assets 10 1,193.64 17,977.58
(b) Other Current Assets 12 1617 ) 10.38
Total Current Assets 69,407.79 52,357.28
TOTAL ASSETS 74,473.65 57,886.26
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 14 1,600.00 1,600.00
(b) Other Equity 15 17,595.86 14,039.89
Total Equity 19,195.86 15,639.89
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 2,861.50 3,143.56
(b) Provisions 18 305.01 246.00
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 1,147.62 923.01
Total Non-current Liabilities 4,314.13 4,312.57
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
" (i) Borrowings 21 14,266.01 237505
(ii) Trade Payables 25
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises (Refer note 22(ii)) b §
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
p . 34,506.24 23,141.31
enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 900.59 875.61
(b) Provisions 18 11.09 1,213.55
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 11273 87.06
(d) Other Current Liabilities 20 1,167.00 10,241.22
Total Current Liabilities 50,963.66 37,933.80
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 74,473.65 57,886.26
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005 3
5 o Haked Soklz
eWr Singhal Sanjeey Mehra Ashok S Sethi
Partner / Managing Director Chairman
Membership No. 95377 l?/ - 02626778 o/ -»/0/ 7

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16th April, 2019

Suranjit Mishra \\Neha Malik

Chief Financial Officer Company Sccretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th April, 2019




Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Notes
(Restated-refer Note 24)
% Lakhs % Lakhs
I Revenue from Operations 23 26,223.82 23,799.38
Il Other Income 27 231.18 51.96
[II Total Income 26,455.00 23,851.34
IV Expenses
(a)  Cost of Power Purchased 17,041.46 16,924.98
Less: Cash discount earned (246.84) (214.18)
16,794.62 16,710.80
(b) Compensation Expense (Net) 7.63 37323
(¢) Employee Benefits Expense 28 1,100.33 1,100.99
(d) Finance Costs 29 887.55 1,013.05
(e) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 4&5 458.09 456.86
(f)  Other Expenses 30 1,478.75 1,769.38
Total Expenses 20,726.97 21,424.31
V Profit Before Tax 5,728.03 2,427.03
VI Tax Expense
Current Tax 31 2,044.66 601.50
Tax for earlier years 31 10.22 (66.66)
Deferred Tax 31 (16.61) 393.02
2,038.27 927.86
VII Profit for the period 3,689.76 1,499.17
VIII Other Comprehensive Income
A Add/(Less):
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
(a) Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans (23.38) 53.58
(b) Tax expense 8.17 (18.54)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (15.21) 35.04
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+ VIII) 3,674.55 1,534.21
X Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value ¥ 10/- Per Share)
Basic (%) 32 23.06 9.37
Diluted (%) 32 23.06 9.37
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005 i
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Partner
Membership/No. 95377

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16th April, 2019
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Sanjeev Mehra
Managing Director
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Suranjit Mishra
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th April, 2019

Ashok S Sethi

Chairman
o/ ’”5'7‘/ 47

“feha Malik

Company Secretary




Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Statement of cash flows for the period ended 31st March , 2019

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March,2019 31st March,2018
(Restated-refer Note 24)
% Lakhs % Lakhs

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 5,728.03 2,427.03
Depreciation and amortisation expense of property, plant & equipment 458.09 456.86
Interest income (12.98) (3.30)
Decrease in fair valuation of investment - 387.00
Finance cost 887.55 1,013.05
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.03) 0.97
Gain on sale of current investinents (218.20) {48.66)
Amortization of leasehold land 0.40 0.40
Liability no longer required written back (57.71) (411.35)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (Net) (12.77) (130.38)
6,772.38 3,691.62
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (41,837.87) 34,042.72
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (6.19) 139.01
Decrease/(increase) in other current financial assets 24.716.35 (24,691.34)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 11,422.64 (9,046.77)
(Decrease)/increase on other current liabilities (9,074.22) 9.710:93
Increase/(decrease) in other current financial liabilitics 48.73 (189.23)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 138.72 73.81
(14,591.91) 10,038.93
Cash generated from operations (7,819.53) 13,730.55
Income taxes paid (1,782.70) (574.79)
Net cash flow from operating activities (9,602.23) 13,155.76

B.  Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (46.28) (410.43)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.46 2.02
Inter company deposits given (9,000.00) (4,500.00)
Inter company deposits received back 9,000.00 4,500.00
Purchase of current investments (2,90,820.00) (85,650.00)
Procecds from sale of current investments 2,91,038.20 85,698.66
Interest income received on fixed deposits 4.60 -
Finance income received 9.90 1.78
Net cash flow from / (used) in investing activities 187.88 (357.97)

C.  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 70,485.15 1,44,481.37
Repayment of borrowings (70,745.58) (1,58,919.37)
Inter company deposits taken 34,500.00 7,500.00
Inter company deposits repaid (34,500.00) (7,500.00)
Finance costs paid (888.74) (1,015.32)
Dividends paid (1,100.00) (400.00)
Dividend distribution tax paid (224.13) (81.43)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (2,473.30) (15,934.75)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,887.65) (3,136.96)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April,2018 (Opening Balance) (2,370.12) 766.84
Cash and cash cquivalents as at 31st March,2019 (Refer note 13 ) (14,257.77) (2,370.12)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP

Firm Registration No: 301003E / E300005
Chartered Accountants

anjee

Partner

Membership No. 95377
/

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16th April, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Power Trading Company Limited
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Chief Financial Officer
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Date: 16th April, 2019
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Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31st March, 2019

A. Equity Share Capital
< Lakhs
No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at Ist April, 2017 1,60,00,000 1,600
Issuc of Equity Shares during the period s =
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 1,60,00,000 1,600
Issue of Equity Shares during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1,60,00,000 1,600
B. Other Equity € Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus
General Reserve Securities Retained Deemed capital
Description Premium Reserve Earnings contribution Total
from holding
company

Balance as at Ist April, 2017 1,355.00 2,089.50 10,739.86 8.30 14,192.66
Add: Issue of financial Guarantee by holding company = 5 - “ .
Profit for the year - - 1,499.17 - 1,499.17
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the year (Net

- - 35.04 - 35.04
of Tax)
Total Comprehensive Income - - 1,534.21 - 1,534.2]1
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend) - - 1,686.98 - 1,686.98
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 1,355.00 2,089.50 10,587.09 8.30 14,039.89
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 > 1,355.00 2,089.50 10,587.09 8.30 14,039.89
Profit for the year - - 3,689.76 - 3,689.76
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the year (Net ) i (1521 I (1521)
of Tax)
Total Comprehensive Income - - 3,674.55 3,674.55
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend) - - 100.00 - 100.00
Tax on Dividend - - 18.58 - 18.58
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1,355.00 2,089.50 14,143.06 8.30 17,595.86

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
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Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
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3.1

Corporate Information:

Tata Power Trading Company Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in the
business of trading of electricity across the country. Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) has granted Category "I certificate to the
Company for purposes of power trading, which allows the Company to trade power units without any quantitative restrictions. The Company sources
power from different public and private sectors utilities and supplies to various consumers being public and private sectors power utilities. The
Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office of the Company is Carnac Receiving station.
34, Sant Tukaram Road, Carnac Bunder. Mumbai - 400009, India.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on April 16, 2019.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) read with section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (the Act).

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for certain f{inancial assets measured at fair value (refer note 2.2
accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

Use of estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of
the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilitics
as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements. which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next {inancial year. is in respect of impairment of investment. provision for employee benefits. useful life of property .
plant & equipment.

Other Significant Accounting Policies

Foreign Currencies

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee (2). These Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of cach reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign
currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are

regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign
currency transactions are included in determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

Financial Instruments

Financial asscts and financial liabilities arc recognised when entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets
and financial liabilities arc initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and tinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate. on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value. depending on the classification of the
financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition)
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows: and

. The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal




Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Debts instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for debt
instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial rccognition):
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash {lows and selling financial assets: and

- The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments in fair value through Profit or loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in Profit and loss

23.2 Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument.
or, where appropriate. a shorter period. to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial assets other than thosc financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest income is recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss and is included in the “Other income™ line item.

2:33 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (I'VTPL)
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.
Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (sce above) arec measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments
that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
A f[inancial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losscs on them on different bases.
Financial assets at FVTPL arc measured at fair value at the end of cach reporting period. with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest carned on the financial asset and is
included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity. the dividend does not represent a recovery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

2.3.4 Derecognition of financial assets
The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assct to another party.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

235 Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Company of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires
expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all
trade receivables that do not constitute a {inancing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to
the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition..

2.4 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

24.1 Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as cither financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

24.2 Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

"+ Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

-Financial liabilities arc classificd as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at fair value
/— through profit or loss.
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A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term: or

- On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking: or

- It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are mecasured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the
effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability., or (where appropriate) a shorter period. to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial Guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payment to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are initially measured at their fair values and. if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

- The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109: and
- The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS
18.

2.4.4 Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilitics when. and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged. cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

9

5 Leasing arrangement

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset or assets. even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The Company as lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset arc classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the rclevant lease. 'Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rentals are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the company to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessces under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

The Company as lessce

A lease is classified at the inception datc as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership to the company is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or. if lower. at the present value
of the minimum lcase payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the company’s general policy on the
borrowing costs (See note 29). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the uselul life of the asset. Hlowever. if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term. the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

. Rental expense from operating leases is gencrally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term ol the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
Structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases
dré recognised in the vear in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
navhich they are incurred.
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2.9

2.10

3.1
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In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases. such incentives arc recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows [rom operating. investing and financing activitics of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an assct may be impaired. If any indication exists. or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or Cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset. unless the asset does not generate Cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future Cash flows are discounted to their present valuc using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in determining fair value less costs ol disposal. recent market
transactions are taken into account. If No such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share Prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forccast calculations. which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s
CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future Cash flows after the fifth year to estimate Cash {low projections beyond periods
covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates Cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate
for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations. including impairment on inventories. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. except for
properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of
any previous revaluation surplus. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at cach reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s
or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised.

Operating cycle

Considering the nature of business activities, the operating cycle has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Accordingly. all assets and
liabilitics have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Group’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS | ‘Presentation of
Financial Statements™ and Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Contingent liabilitics

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements by way of notes to accounts. unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefit is remote.

Dividend distribution to equity sharcholders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to its equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no
longer at its discretion. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding
amount is recognised directly in equity.

In case of Interim Dividend. the liability is recognised on its declaration by the Board of Directors.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that arc issued, but not vet effective. up to the date of issuance of the Company’s [inancial statements arc disclosed

““below. The Company intends to adopt these standards. if applicable, when they become effective.
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a) Ind AS 116 - Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified in March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after |
April 2019. It sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is
substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Ind AS 116 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under Ind AS 17. The Company is in the process of evaluating the requirements of the standard and its impact on its financial statements.

b) Ind AS 12 — Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The
company does not expect any impact {rom this pronouncement. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the entity
pays a tax on dividend which is cffectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on behalf of sharcholders. Such amount paid or payable
to taxation authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend. in accordance with Ind AS 12.

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases.
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1)
the entity has to use judgement. to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together.
The decision should be based on the approach which provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the
taxation authority will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount (3) entity has to consider the probability of the
relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and the determination of taxable profit (tax loss). tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates would depend upon the probability. The Company does not expect any significant impact of the amendment on its {inancial
statements.

o

-~

Ind AS 109 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (or,
depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any impact on its financial statements.

d) Ind AS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement oceurs. it is mandatory that the current service cost and the net interest for
the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition. amendments have been included
to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

¢) Ind AS 23 — Borrowing Costs
The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended usc or sale. that borrowing
becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The Company does not
expect any impact from this amendment.

3.2 The areas involving critical estimates are:

i} Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature. a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables

ii) Fair Value of Investment

=

During the previous year company has evaluated the fair value of its investment in Tata Ceramics Limited based on fair valuation conducted by an
independent expert (Also refer note 6 and note 35). As per management estimate there is no change in the fair value of investment as compared to
previous year.

iii) Useful life of property . plant and equipment

_ As described in note 1.4 above, the company reviews the estimated useful lives of property plant and cquipment at end of each annual reporting
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Accounting Polic
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses., Cost includes purchase price (Net off trade discount & rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's
accounting policy.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Company's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are available for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than properties under construction) less their residual values
over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets whose estimated useful life is assessed based on
technical advice, taking into account the regulatory prescribed rates, nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the
operating conditions of the asset. etc.

Plant and Equipment - Wind Mill: 25 years (Initial 10 years at 6% based on GERC, thereafter 2%)

Plant and Equipment - Solar Plant: 15 years

Motor Vehicles: S years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss. .

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

T Lakhs
Plant and Furpiture and Office Motor Total
Equipment Fixtures Equipment Vehicles
Cost
Balance as at st April, 2018 5,859.59 3,30 783 2551 5,896.63
Additions 1.1 - 0.82 - 123
Disposals 3.17 - - - 3.17
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 5,857.53 3.30 8.65 25.91 5,895.39
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 781.21 1.35 5.14 16.94 804.64
Depreciation Expense 367.29 0.23 0.88 3.02 371.42
Disposal of Assets 1.74 - - - 1.74
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1,146.76 1.58 6.02 19.96 1,174.32
Net carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2019 4,710.77 1.72 2.63 5.95 4,721.07
As at 31st March, 2018 5,078.38 1.95 2.69 8.97 5,091.99
% Lakhs
Plant and TFurniture and Office Motor Total
Equipment Tixtures Equipment Vehicles ‘
Cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 3,271.82 291 23.33 1527 3,313.33
Additions 2,603.22 0.47 - 10.64 2,614.33
Disposals 15.45 0.08 15.50 - 31.03
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 5,859.59 3.30 7.83 25.91 5,896.63
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 439.93 1.10 19.07 13.75 473.85
Depreciation Expense 354.54 0.30 0.80 318 358.83
Disposal of Assets 13.26 0.05 14.73 - 28.04
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 781.21 1.35 5.14 16.94 804.64
Net carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2018 5,078.38 1.95 2.69 8.97 5,091.99
As at 31st March, 2017 2,831.89 1.81 4.26 1.52 2,839.48
N y Notes:
. ", Plantand equipment with a carrying amount of . 4702.34 lakhs (as at 31st March, 2018 - %. 5062.27 lakhs) have been pledged to
/’;//;' . 14 secure borrowings of the Company (sec note no. 16).
4 b
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5. Other intangible assets

Accounting Policy

Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
- Computer Software license: 5 years

< Lakhs
Computer software Total
Cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 73550 735.50
Additions 0.14 0.14
Disposal - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 735.64 735.64
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at Ist April, 2018 526.13 526.13
Amortisation expense 86.65 86.65
Disposal - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 612.78 612.78
Net Block
As at 31st March, 2019 122.86 122.86
As at 31st March, 2018 209.37 209.37
¢ Lakhs
Computer software Total
Cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 73550 735.50
Additions - -
Disposal - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 735.50 735.50
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 428.09 428.09
Amortisation expense 98.04 98.04
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 526.13 526.13
Net Block
As at 31st March, 2018 209.37 209.37
As at 31st March, 2017 307.41 307.41

The Company holds intangible assets comprising SAP licenses for the ERP system implemented in the Company.
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6.  Non-current Investments
As at As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Numbers Numbers % Lakhs Z Lakhs
Investments carried at fair value
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
a) Investments in Preference instruments at FVTPL-Tata
ceramics Limited 3,00,000 3,00,000 387.00 387.00
Less: Fair value changes (387.00) (387.00)
b) Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL-Power
Exchange India Limited 25,00,000 25,00,000 250.00 250.00
Less: Fair value changes (250.00) (250.00)
Total Aggregate Unquoted Investments N "
i) 3,00,000 7.25% of Redecemable Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of T 100 each fully paid up in Tata Ceramics Limited
i)  25,00,000 equity share of ¥ 10 each fully paid up in Power Exchange India Limited
7. Trade Receivables
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
¥ Lakhs < Lakhs
Current Trade Receivables
Considered good (refer note 9) 56,608.78 14,749.32
Considered doubtful 575,52 597.11
57,184.30 15,346.43
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables (575.52) (597.11)
Total 56,608.78 14,749.32
The credit period on sale of power up to 90 days. Interest is charged at 15% to 18% per annum on the outstanding balance beyond the credit period.
The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The
provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward Jooking information. The expected credit loss allowance is
based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as per the provision matrix computed as per historical experience and expected credit
loss.
Age of receivables ¥ Lakhs
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Within the credit period 27.252.76 7,085.97
1-30 days past due 13,935.59 4,819.56
31-60 days past due 986.06 243.32
61-90 days past due 1:297.20 72.28
More than 90 days past due 13,712.63 3,125.30
Total 57,184.30 15,346.43
8. Contract Balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers
% Lakhs
As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 Ist April, 2017
Contract assets o ” .
Receivables
Trade receivables (Gross) (refer note 9) 57,184.30 15,346.43 49,389.15
Unbilled revenue and agency receivable 11,580.96 19,523.71 11,344.15
Less : Allowances for doubtful debts (575.52) (597.11) (686.02)
Net receivables 68,189.74 34,273.03 60,047.28
Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers 1,025.80 10,105.28 436.46
Total Contract Liabilities 1,025.80 10,105.28 436.46

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets are transferred to reccivables

whetrthe rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognized as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Sighificant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
/ i3
Vv

P
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10.

11.

T Lalkhs
As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Contract Contract Contract Contract
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Opening Balance - 10,105.28 - 436.46
Less : Revenue recognized during the year from balance at the - (10,105.28) - (436.46)
beginning of the year
Add : Advance received during the year not recognized as - 1,025.80 - 10,105.28
revenue
Add : Revenue in respect of earlier years recognized during the - - - -
year
Add : Revenue recognized during the year apart from above 25,628.21 = 22.,762.50 -
Transfer from contract assets to receivables (25,628.21) - (22,762.50) -
Closing Balance - 1,025.80 - 10,105.28
As at As at
Movement in the expected credit loss alloyance 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
T Lakhs ¥ Lakhs

Balance at the beginning of the year 597.11 686.02

Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at (21.59) (88.91)

lifetime expected credit losses

575.52 597.11

Balance at the end of the year

Revision of MPL tariff based on CERC order

The Company has long term contract for purchase of 600 MW of power from Maithon Power Limited (MPL), which has in turn been sold to Tata Power
Delhi Distribution Company Limited (TPDDL) and to West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited (WBSEDCL). MPL bills the Company
on the basis of tariff as determined by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC). The tariff charged by the Company to TPDDL and WBSEDCL is
based on CERC determined tariff for MPL. On 27th December 2017, CERC issued Order with respect to MPL for truing up for the period from FY12 to
FY14 and tariff determination for the period from FY 15 to FY19. As a result of the CERC Order, during previous year ended 31.3.2018, MPL issued a
credit note of Z 38,653.52 lakhs to the Company and the Company in turn issued credit notes totaling to ¥ 38,653.52 lakhs on TPDDL and WBSEDCL. On
account of these credit notes, the company reduced receivable from TPDDL and WBSEDCL and payable to MPL by ¥ 38,653.52 lakhs for year ended
31.3.2018. During the year ended 31.3.2019, the parties have settled the respective receivable and payable arising out of the aforesaid CERC tariff order.

Other Financial Assets
As at As af
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
¥ Lakhs % Lakhs
Current
(i)  Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits 620.01 723.56
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Security Deposits 5.00 5.00
Less: Provision (5.00) (5.00)
620.01 723.56|"
Interest accrued on fixed deposit - 1.52
- 1.52
Unsecured, considered good
Advances (refer note 10) 573.63 17,252.50
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances 68.28 59.46
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (68.28) (59.46)
573.63 17,252.50
1,193.64 17,977.58
Non-current tax Assets
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
% Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
Non-current tax assets
Advance Income-tax (Net of provision) 213,93 219.22
213.93 219.22

[
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12. Other Assets

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
¥ Lalkhs ¥ Lakhs
Non-current
@) Unamortised Premium for Leasehold Land
Unsecured, considered good 8.00 8.40
8.00 8.40
Current
(i) Balances with Government Authorities
Unsecured, considered good
Advances -indirect tax input credit receivable 2.40 2.40
(ii) Unamortised Premium for Leasehold Land
Unsecured, considered good 0.40 0.40
(i) Other Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses 13.37 7.58
Other Advances o o
13.37 7.58
16.17 10.38

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounting Policy

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage & demand deposit with bank.

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
T Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
) Balances with Banks:
In Current Accounts 8.24 4.93
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 8.24 4.93
Bank Overdraft (Refer Note No.21) (14,266.01) (2375.05)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flows (14,257.77) (2370.12)
(i) Balances with Banks other then (i) above
In Deposit Accounts (with original maturity between 3 to 12 months) ! 91.36
_ - 91.36
(iii) Changes in liabilities from financing activities
Opening bals f Non-Current b i includi rrent maturit
Pemng alance of Non-Current borrowings (including current maturity 3,403.99 3,652.34
of non-current borrowings)
Proceeds during the year - .
Repayment during the year (260.43) (248.35)
Closing balance 3,143.56 3,403.99

o
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14. Equity - Share Capital

As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Number ¥ Lakhs Number ¥ Lakhs
Authorised
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 2,00,00,000 2,000 2,00,00,000 2,000
Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,80,00,000 1,800 1,80,00,000 1,800
3,800 3,800
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
Fully paid equity shares of Rs 10 each. 1,60,00,000 1,600 1,60,00,000 1,600
Total Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up Share Capital 1,600 1,600

(i) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Number ¥ Lakhs Number % Lakhs
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 1,60,00,000 1,600 1,60,00,000 1,600
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,60,00,000 1,600 1,60,00,000 1,600

(ii)  Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of ¥ 10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

(ili)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Number % Holding Number % Holding
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid
The Tata Power Company Limited, Holding Company 1,60,00,000 100% 1,60,00,000 100%
15. Other Equity
As at As at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
% Lakhs % Lakhs

General Reserve

Balance at the end of the period 1,355.00 1,355.00
Securities Premium Account

Balance at the end of the period 2,089.50 2,089.50
Retained Earnings )

Balance at the beginning of the period 10,587.09 10,739.86

Add:  Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) arising from Remeasurement of Defined

Benefit Obligation (Net of Tax) (15.21) 35.04

Add: Profit for the period 3,689.76 1,499.17

Less:  Payment of dividend on equity share ¥ 0.625 per share (Previous ycar X 2.5 per share) 100.00 400.00

Less:  Payment of interim dividend on equity share Nil per share (Previous year X 6.25 per

share) - 1,000.00|

Less:  Tax on Dividend 18.58 286.98

Closing Balance 14,143.06 10,587.09
Deemed capital contribution from Holding company

Balance at the end of the period ) 8.30 8.30
Total of Other Equity 17,595.86 14,039.89
Note:
L. In respect of the year ended 31st March, 2019, the directors bave proposed a dividend of ¥ 15 per share to be paid on fully paid shares. This

. equity dividend is subject to approval at the annual general meeting and has not been included as a liability in the financial statements. The
*proposed equity dividend is payable to all holders of fully paid equity sharcs. The total estimated equity dividend to be paid is ¥ 24 crore.

("}v
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16. Non-current Borrowings

(i) Secured - At Amortised Cost

(Restated-refer Note 24) As at 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
T Lakhs ¥ Lalhs
Term Loans from Banks
Kotak Mahindra Bank 3,143.56 3,403.99
Less: Transferred to Current maturities of long term debt (refer Note 17) (282.06) (260.43)
Total 2,861.50 3,143.56

(i) Terms of repayment of outstanding balance of term loans are stated below:

As at 31st March, 2019

Amount outstanding
Rs. in Lacs

Repayment terms for
outstanding balance

Rate of interest

Kotak Mahindra Bank

420.00

24 equal quarterly
installments from 30th
June, 2019 to 31st March,
2025

6 months MCLR + 10 basis points i.e. 8.95% as at 3[st
March, 2019

33 quarterly installments

6 months MCLR + 10 basis points i.e. 8.95% as at 31st

Kotak Mahindra Bank 1,341.16 |from 30th June, 2019 to March. 2019
30th June, 2027 ’
37 quarterly installments S
hs M R + a ts i.e. 8.95% S g
Kotak Mahindra Banlk 1,382.40 |from 16th April, 2019 to ﬁ;’;?t;?)] 9CL L0 s ol b R e bl
16th April, 2028 ’
Total 3,143.56

As at 31 March, 2018

Amount outstanding
Rs. in Lacs

Repayment terms for
outstanding balance

Rate of interest

Kotak Mahindra Bank

490.00

28 equal quarterly
installments from 30th
June, 2018 1o 31st March,
2025

6 months MCLR + 10 basis points i.e. 8.55% as at 31st
March, 2018

Kotak Mahindra Bank

1,460.04

37 quarterly installments
from 30th June, 2018 to
30th June, 2027

6 months MCLR + 10 basis points i.c. 8.55% as at 31st
March, 2018

Kotak Mahindra Bank

1,453.95

41 quarterly instaliments
from 16th April, 2018 to
16th April, 2028

6 months MCLR + 10 basis points i.e. 8.55% as at 31st
March, 2018

Total

3,403.99

(iii) Security Terms

Exclusive charge over the moveable fixed assets of the project (ie., Wind & solar projects) and exclusive charge on project receivables.

(iv) Balance outstanding as at 31st March, 2019 is X. 3143.56 lakhs (3 st March, 2018 - Z. 3403.99 lakhs) of which Z. 282.06 lakhs (31st March, 2018 -
%.260.43 lakhs) pertains to current maturities of long term borrowings. (see Note 17)

(v) The Company has not defaulted on repayment of loan and interest payment thereon during the current and previous year.
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17. Other Financial Liabilities

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
% Lakhs % Lakhs
Current
(a) Current Maturities of Long-term Debt (Refer note 16) 282.06 260.43
(b) Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 23.90 25.09
(c) Other Payables
Payables towards Purchase of Fixed Assets - 44.19
Security Deposits from Customers 589.26 540.53
Security Deposits from Others 5.37 537
Total 900.59 875.61

18. Provisions

Accounting Policy

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash {lows (when
the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is
considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation exceeds the
economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

As at Asat
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
% Lakhs % Lakhs
Non-current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences 108.71 89.46
Gratuity 142.22 110.19
Post Employment Medical Benefit 8.92 6.00
Ex-Gratia and retirement gift 2128 18.21
Hospitalisation in Service and long service award 23.88 22.14
Total Non-current Provisions 305.01 246.00
Current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences 4.12 3.46
Gratuity 2.65 1.82
Ex-Gratia and retirement gift 2.69 1.277
Hospitalisation in Service and long service award 1.63 145
Other Provisions
Interim dividend - 1,000.00
Interim dividend Tax - 205.55
Total Current Provisions 11.09 1,213.55
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Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Accounting Policy

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assct to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred lax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the

end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give futurc economic benefits
in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the
asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

As at As at
31st March, 2019, 31st March, 2018
X Lakhs| T Lakhs
Deferred Tax Assets 301.23 536.01
Deferred Tax Liabilities (1,448.85) (1,459.02)
Total - Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (1,147.62) (923.01)

Recognised in

. R ised i -
Opening ecognised in Utilised other s llomes

s Balance Profit or loss |during the year .
comprehensive
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Allowance for Doubtful Debts, Deposits and Advances 231.15 (4.46) - = 226.69
Provision for Employee Benefits and Others 55.47 10.90 - 8.17 74.54
MAT Credit entitlement 249.39 - (249.39) - =
536.01 6.44 (249.39) 8.17 301.23

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,459.02 (10.17) - g 1,448.85

1,459.02 (10.17) - - 1,448.85
Net Deferred Tax Liability 923.01 (16.61) 249.39 (8.17) 1,147.62

Recognised in
other Closing balance
comprehensive

Opening Recognised in Utilised

FY L8 Balance Profit or loss |during the year

Deferred Tax Assets in relation to

Allowance for Doubtful Debts, Deposits and Advances 274.08 (42.93) - B 231.15

Provision for Employee Benefits and Others 43.72 30.29 - (18.54) 55.47

MAT Credit entitlement 222.58 26.81 - - 249.39

_ 540.38 14.17 - (18.54) 536.01
Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,051.83 407.19 - - 1,459.02

1,051.83 407.19 = - 1,459.02

|Défervedrax Liability 511.45 393.02 - 18.54 923.01
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20. Other Current Liabilities

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
¥ Lakhs < Lakhs
Current
Statutory Liabilities 134.72 134.75
Advance payments received from Customers (refer note 9) 1,025.80 10,105.28
Other Liabilities 6.48 1.19
1,167.00 10,241.22
21. Current Borrowings
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
¥ Lakhs T Lakhs
Secured - At Amortised Cost
From Banks
Bank Overdraft (refernote 1 and 2 below) 14,266.01 2,375.05
14,266.01 2,375.05

Security

1. Secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation of the Company's moveable including book-debts, bills, outstanding monies,
receivables, both present and future ranking pari-passu with other participating banks except project receivables.
2. The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank loans is 8.34% per annum (as at 31 March, 2018: 7.34% per annum)

22. Trade payables

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
T Lakhs % Lakhs
Trade payables (see note below)
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & 34,506.24 23,141.31
small enterprises (refer note 9)
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises - 5
34,506.24 23,141.31

Note:

1, The average credit period is up to 30 days for the company.

il. Based on information available with the company, the balance due to micro, small enterprises as defined under the micro,
small & medium enterprises development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is Rs Nil (31st March 2018 : Rs Nil) and no interest has been
paid or is payable during the year under the terms of the MSMED Act 2006. The information provided by the company has
been relied upon by the auditors.
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23. Revenue from Operations
Accounting Policy
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Company’s activities as described below.

1. Sale of electricity
Revenue from sale of power is recognised net of estimated rebates and other similar allowances when the units of electricity is delivered. Revenue
from such contracts is recognised over time for each unit of electricity delivered at the pre determined rate. As the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits of the Company's performance obligation, it best depicts the value to the customer and complete satisfaction of
performance obligation.
In the arrangements the Company is acting as an agent, the revenue is recognized on net basis when the units of electricity are delivered to power
procurers because this is when the Company transfers control over its services and the customer benefits from the Company's such agency services.

The Company determines its revenue on certain contracts net of power purchase cost based on the following factors:

a.  auother party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract as the Company does not have the ability to direct the use of power supplied or
obtain benefits from supply of power.

b.  the Coripany does not have inventory risk before or afier the power has been delivered to customers as the power is directly supplied to
customer.

¢.  the Company has no discretion in establishing the price for supply of power. The Company's consideration in these contracts is only based on
the difference between sales price charged to procurer and purchase price given to supplier.

For other contract which does not qualify the conditions mentioned above, revenue is determined on gross basis.

Customers are billed based on contractually agreed frequency which is generally monthly or at the end of supply in case supply is for a part of the
month and are given credit period on sale of power up to 90 days. Interest is charged at 15% to 18% per annum on the outstanding balance beyond
the credit period.

ii.  Rendering of Services
Revenue in the nature of advisory services rendered towards finalisation of power purchase agreements, load management etc. is recognised as
determined under the terms of respective agreements. For sale of power under banking arrangements only margin earned on the {ransactions is
accounted for as revenue.

iii. Delayed payment and compensation charges
Delayed payment charges for power supply on grounds of prudence are recognised when recovery is virtually certain.
Compensation recoverable from customers/suppliers for default in purchase/sale of power is accrued as determined under the terms of respective
agreements and acknowledged by customers/suppliers.

iv. Dividend and Interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).
[nterest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

For Year ended
31st March, 2018
% Lakhs

For Year ended
31st March, 2019
T Lakhs

(a) Revenue from Power Supply 19,469.15 16,588.02
(Less): Cash Discount (350.69) (260.72)
19,118.46 16,327.30
(b) Revenue from Power Supply of agency nature 4,06,896.29 3,54,803.67
(Less): Cash Discount (3,279.30) 4,03,616.99 (3,025.94) 35177073
(Less): Cost of power purchase of agency nature 4,03,327.09 3,51,218.48
(Less): Cash Discount (6,219.85) 3,97,107.24 (5.875.95) 3,45,342.53
6,509.75 6,435.20
i. Total Revenue from Power Supply 25,628.21 22,762.50

ii.  Other Operating Revenue
(i) Income in respect of Services Rendered 114.55 52.64

(ii) Liabilities no longer required written back 57.71 411.35

(iif) Miscellaneous income - 19.25

(iv) Delayed Payment Charges recovered 29.81 16.01

. (v) Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances written back (Net) 12.77 130.38

b & '\“(.yi) Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 0.03 -

* (vii) Other income 380.74 409.25

P B 595.61 1,036.88
7 otal Revenue from Operations 26,223.82 Ve 23,799.38
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Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contract with customers" supersedes Ind AS 18 "Revenue” and related interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the
model to contracts with their customers. The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption. The effect of the transition on
the current period has not been disclosed as the standard provides an optional practical expedient. The Company did not apply any of the other available
optional practical expedients.

The Company has certain contracts with customers to arrange power for its customers. Before the adoption of Ind AS 115, the Company concluded that
based on the existence of credit risk and the nature of the consideration in the contract, it has an exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated
with the sale of power to its customers, and accounted for the contracts as if it is a principal. Upon the adoption of Ind AS 115, the Company determined
that in certain contracts it does not control the goods before they are transferred to customers. Hence, in the contract where it does not have the ability to
direct the use of the goods, the company recognises revenue as an agent. This change resulted in decreases in revenue from the sale of goods and cost of
sales by an equivalent amount. There is, however, no impact in the statement of financial position as at April 01, 2017 and March 31, 2018,

The statement of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 has been restated, resulting in decreases in both Revenue from contracts with customers
and Cost of sales of ¥ 345,342.53 lakhs.

Application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on the Balance sheet as at April 1, 2017 and March 31, 2018. Further it did not have any impact on the
profit and earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2019.

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting
period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS
115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue recognized corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Company has a single stream of revenue i.e. sale of power. Revenue from Contracts with Customers reconciliation has been given as under:

For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
< Lakhs % Lalkhs
Revenue from Contracts with Customers 25,978.90 23,023.22
Less : Cash Discount (350.69) (260.72)
Total revenue as per contracted price 25,628.21 22,762.50
Other Operating revenue 595.61 1,036.88
Revenue from Operations 26,223.82 23,799.38
Other Income
For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
% Lakhs X Lakhs
(a) Gain on Investments
Gain on Current Investment measured at FVTPL-Mutual Funds 218.20 48.66
218.20 48.66
(b) Other Non-operating Income
Interest Income from fixed deposits 3.08 1.52
Other interest 9.90 1.78
12.98 3.30
Total Other Income 231.18 51.96
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28.

Employee Benefits Expense

Accounting Policy

a.

Defined contribution plans
Paymenis to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Defined benefits plans
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past
service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs;
- Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the
~ net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss;
- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements and
- Net interest expense or income
A liability for a fermination benefit is recognised at the carlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefits and when
the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be

made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

For Year ended For Year ended

31st March, 2019| 31st March, 2018

% Lakhs X Lakhs

Salaries and Wages 960.56 856.90
Contribution to Provident Fund 38.69 35.69
Gratuity Expense (refer note 36) 1.59 29.03
Staff Welfare Expenses 99.49 179.37
1,100.33 1,100.99

Finance Costs

Accounting Policy
Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assels, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2019| 31st March, 2018
T Lakhs % Lakhs
(a) Interest Expense:
Borrowings
Interest on Borrowings from Related Parties 66.77 1.30
Interest on Loans - Banks & Financial Institutions 625.17 826.40
Others
Interest on Bank Overdraft 122.46 82.35
814.40 910.05
Bank charges 73:15 103.00
73.15 103.00
887.55 1,013.05
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30.

31.

iii.

Other Expenses

For Year ended

For Year ended

31st March, 2019| 31st March, 2018
% Lakhs % Lakhs
Rental of Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment, etc. 135.00 133.46
Insurance 22.53 1.75
Other Operation Expenses 140.43 139.96
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 59.72 55.63
Consultants' Fees 161.15 270.95
Auditors' Remuneration 21.52 22.19
Cost of Services Procured 320.29 297.72
Bad Debts 14.31 17.39
Brand Equity Expenses 341.00 152.69
Amortisation of Advance Towards Leasehold Land 0.40 0.40
Decrease in fair valuation of investment - 387.00
Legal Charges 52.20 49.44
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 42.99 55.05
Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) = 0.97
Miscellaneous Expenses 167.21 :184.78
Total 1,478.75 1,769.38
Note: Payment to Statutory Auditors comprise (inclusive of GST)*
- For Audit 13.55 13.48
- For Taxation matters 2.12 4.48
- For Other services 4.25 1.47
- For Reimbursement of expenses 1.60 2.76
Total 21.52 22.19

* Above auditor's remuneration also includes predecessor auditor fees of Z. Nil (Previous year ¥ 5.85 Lacs) paid for limited review, other services and out of pocket

expenscs

Income taxes
Accounting Policy

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date and generates taxable income.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equily. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Income taxes recognised in the statement of profit and loss

T Lakhs
For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2019| 31st March, 2018
Current tax
In respect of the current year 2,044.66 601.50
In respect of the previous years 10.22 (66.66)
2,054.88 534.84
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (16.61) 419.83
MAT credit (entitlement)/utilised - (26.81)
Total Deferred tax expense (16.61) 393.02
Total income tax expense 2,038.27 927.86
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
% Lakhs
For Year ended For Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Profit before tax 5,728.03 2,427.03
Income tax expense calculated at 34.944% (2017-18: 34.608%) 2,001.60 839.95
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 18.28 162.27
Effect related to adjustment for previous years 10:22 (66.66)
Effect of items not reclassified to profit & loss account 8.17 (18.54)
Effect of change in tax rate - 10.84
2,038.27 927.86

The tax rate used for the financial years 2018-2019 and 2017-2018 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate payable by corporate entities in India on taxable

profits under the Indian income tax law.

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

% Lakhs

Deferred tax

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation
Total.ingome tax recognised in other comprehensive income

g Bifurgiét,tj’qire_f the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:

5

% | Item that wifknot be reclassitied to profit or loss

For Year ended

For Year ended

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
) 8.17 (18.54)
8.17 (18.54)
8.17 (18.54)

4
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32. Earnings per share
Accounting Policy

i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- The profit attributable to owners of the group

- By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus element in equity shares

issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted carnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares: and

= The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares.

For Year ended

For Year ended

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

Basic and Diluted earnings per share

23.06

937

Basic/ Diluted earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic/ diluted carnings per share are as follows:

For Year ended

For Year ended

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

¥ Lakhs

% Lakhs

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the company

3,689.76

1,499.17

Earnings used in the calculation of basic/ diluted carnings per share (2 in Lakhs)

3,689.76

1,499.17

For Year ended

For Year ended

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic/ diluted earnings
per share.

1,60,00,000

1,60,00,000

Note: There are no potential equity shares which are anti-dilutive.

33. Segment information

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of trading of electricity in India (Principal or agency basis). Based on the information reported to
the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance, there are no reportable

segments in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 108-'Operating Segment Reporting, notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

34. Related party disclosures

(a) Name of related parties and description of relationship:
Controlling entity (CE):

The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) (Holding Company)

Fellow subsidiaries (where transactions have taken place during the year):

(i) Tata Power Delhi Distribution Limited (TPDDL)

(i1) Maithon Power Limited (MPL)

(1ii) Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPSS)

(iv) Tata Power Renewal Energy Limited (TPREL)

) Costal Gujrat Power Limited (CGPL)

(vi) Walwhan Renewable Energy Limited (WREL)
(vii) Walwhan Solar Kannada Private Limited (WSKPL)
(viil) Vagarai Windfarms Limited (VWFL)

(ix) Powerlinks Transmission Limited (PTL)

(x) Clean Sustainable Solar Energy Pvt. Ltd. (CSSEL)

Associates of Controlling entity (where transactions have taken place during the yecar):
(1) Dagachhu Hydro Power Corporation Ltd (DHPC)
(i)

Tata Communications Ltd (TCL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Sanjeev Mehra, Managing Director

Amey Naik, Company Secretary till 31st July and CFO till 30th June 2018.
Suranjit Mishra, Chief Financial Officer (wef from 1st July 2018)

Neha Malik Company Secretary ( wef from 1Aug 2018)
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35. Categories of financial instrument

35.1 Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amount and fair value of the financial instruments:

Carrying value Fair Value
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2019 2018 2019 2018
T Lakhs % Lakhs T Lakhs % Lakhs

Financial assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8.24 4.93 8.24 4.93
Other Balances with banks - 91.36 - 91.36
Trade Receivables 56,608.78 14,749.32 56,608.78 14,749.32
Unbilled Revenues and agency receivable 11,580.96 19,523.71 11,580.96 19,523.71
Other financial assets 1,193.64 17,977.58 1,193.64 17,977.58
Total 69,391.62 52,346.90 69,391.62 52,346.90
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 34,506.24 23,141.31 34,506.24 23,141.31
Floating rate borrowings* 3,167.46 3,429.08 3,167.46 3,429.08
Other financial liabilities 594.63 590.09 594.63 590.09

38,268.33 27,160.48 38,268.33 27,160.48

* Includes current maturities of non-current borrowings and interest accrued but not due on borrowing.
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other balances with bank, trade receivables, unbilled revenues, trade payables, other financial
assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

. Considering the sustained losses in the companies in which the investment is held, fair value of the unquoted equity shares have been
estimated using a Adjusted Net Asset Value Method. The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model
inputs, including realizable value of assets. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are
used in management's estimate of fair value for those unquoted investments.

- The cost of certain unquoted investments approximate their fair value because there is a wide range of possible fair value measurements and
the cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative

sensitivity analysis as at 31st March 2019 and 3 Ist March 2018 are as shown below:

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Valuation Significant Range (weighted average) Sensitivity of the
techniques unobservable input to fair value
inputs
FVTPL assets in unquoted equity shares of Net Asset Value None N.A -
Power Exchange India Limited Method
FVTPL assets in unquoted preference Adjusted Net Asset Realizable Value of 25% of carrying value IO(I)I‘;/((]:O&s;c}::ci;tue
shares of Tata Ceramics Limited Value Method Finished Goods .

will be negative

The discount for lack of marketabilily represents the amount that the company has determined that market participants would take into account when
pricing the investments.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of unquoted shares classified as Fair value through profit and loss assets

¥ Lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Opening balance - 387.00
Decrease in fair value of investment at FVTPL . (387.00)

Closing balance

A%
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35.2 Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and
consists of the following three levels:

Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price.
Level 2 Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This includes and investment in redeemable non-cumulative preference shares and equity shares.

Level 3 Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model
based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they
based on available market data. This includes unquoted equity shares.

The following table summarizes financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required) :

Fair value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2019

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs Total
Date of valuation blasual 1) (el 2} laewel 33
Asset measured at fair value
FVTPL financial investments
Investment in equity shares of Power
Exchange India Limited 31st March, 2019 - - = -
Investment in preference shares of Tata
Ceramics Limited 21st March, 2018 = = = i
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
Floating rate borrowings - 3,143.56 - 3,143.56
Total - 3,143.56 - 3,143.56

¥air value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2018

Quoted prices in Significant Significant Tinfe]
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs ol
Date of valuation (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Asset measured at fair value
FVTPL financial investments
Investment in equity shares of Power
[ixchange India Limited 27th April, 2017 - - = .
Investment in preference shares of Tata
Ceramics Limited 2]1st March, 2018 - - = -
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
Floating rate borrowings - 3,403.99 - 3,403.99
Total - 3,403.99 - 3,403.99

35.3 Capital Management and Gearing Ratio

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. From time to time, the Company reviews its policy related to dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders. The Company
monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio between
20% and 60%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of its long-term and short-term goals. Its
Capital structure consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes below) and total equity.
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Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: % Lakhs
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Debt (i) 17,409.57 5,779.04
Less: Cash and Bank balances 8.24 96.29
Net debt 17,401.33 5,682.75
Total Capital (ii) 19,195.86 15,639.89
Capital and net debt 36,597.19 21,322.64
Net debt to Total Capital plus net debt ratio (%) 47.55 26.65
i) Debt is defined as long-term borrowings (including current maturities) and short-term borrowings.

(ii) Equity is defined as Equity share capital and other equity including reserves and surplus.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

The Company has been monitoring Net debt to Total Capital plus net debt ratio during the year as against Net debt to equity ratio monitored in the
previous year, However, there is no change in the overall objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31st March 2019
and 31st March 2018.

35.4 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and other [inancial liabilities. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, other bank balances, unbilled receivables and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds
FVTPL investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company’s senior management is supported by a risk committee that reviews the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Company. The Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in
derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of two types of risk: interest rate risk , price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 3 Lst March, 2019 and 3 1st March, 2018.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt as at 31st March, 2019. The analyses exclude the impact of
movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates

Interest rate sensitivity:

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to interest rates for term loans at the end of the reporting period and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in case of term loans that have
floating rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all the other variables were held constant, the effect on Interest expense for the
respective financial years and consequent effect on Company's profit in that financial year would have been as below:

T Lakhs
As of 31st March, 2019 As of 31st March, 2018
50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease
Interest expense on loan 15.72 (15.72) 18.18 (18.18)
Liffect on profit before tax (15.72) 15.72 (18.18) 18.18

Price Risk

The Company is exposed to equity /preference price risks arising from equity/preference instrument investments. These investments are held for
strategic purpose.

The carrying amount of the Company's investment designated as at fair value through profit or loss at the end of the reporting period is T Nil (31st
March, 2018 % Nil).

Accordingly, for the year ended 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, 2018 every 0.50 percentage increase /decrease in the value of investments, will
affect tlle_gglg?any's profit before Tax by ¥ Nil and ¥ Nil respectively
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Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a linancial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). Credit exposure is controlled by counter party limits for
major counter parties that are reviewed and approved by the Management regularly. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed based on the financial
condition of receivables and the collaterals are held as security in some of the cases. The Company generally deals with parties which has good credit
raling/ worthiness given by external rating agencies or based on Company's internal assessment as listed below:

Trade reccivables
Other financial assets
Total

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

56.608.78
1,193.04

14,749.32
17.977.58

57,802.42

32,726.90

feter note 7 for eredit risk and other information in respect of (rade reccivables. Other receivables as stated above are due from the partics under normal

course of the business and as such the Company believes exposure to credit risk to be minimal.

Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves. banking facilitics and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of

sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial labilitics based on contractual undiscounted payments.

31st March, 2019
Non-Derivatives

Borrowings*

Interest on above borrowings
Trade Payables

Other I'inancial Liabilities

Total Non-Derivative Liabilitics

31st March, 2018
Non-Derivatives

Borrowings*

Interest on above borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

Total Non-Derivative Liabilities

* Includes current maturities of long term debts and interest acerued but not due on borrowing.

T Lakhs

Up to [to5 5+ Total Carrying Amount
1 year years vears
14,571.97 .392.19 1.469.30 17.433.46 17.433.46
269.09 787.89 244.14 1.301.12 -
34.506.24 - - 34.506.24 34.506.24
594.63 s - 594.63 594.63
49,941.93 2,180.08 1,713.44 53,835.45 52,534.33
2.660.57 1,290.58 1,852.98 5.804.13 5.804.13
280.17 867.40 375.58 1.523.15 -
23.141.31 - - 23.141.3 2314151
590.09 - - 590.09 590.09
26,672.14 2,157.98 2,228.56 31,058.68 29,535.53

The Company has access to financing facilities as described in note below. The Company expeets to meet its obligations from operating cash flows and

proceeds of maturing financial assets.

Financing facilities

Secured Long term facility with various maturity dates through to 16th April, 2028.

Amount used
Amount unused

Sccured bank overdraft and other loan facilities

Amount used
Amount unused

R Lakhs

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

(O8]
s
0o
n
(o

14,266.01
13.417.99

3.403.99
300.00

2.375.05
30.680.95
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Employee benefit plan

Accounting Policy

Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund which is a defined contribution plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund plan is
operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
cost Lo the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is T 38.69 Lakhs (for the year ended 3 1st March, 2018 % 35.69 Lakhs) and represents
contribution payable to the Employee Provident Fund.

As at 31st March, 2019, contribution of ¥ 9.08 Lakhs (as at 31st March, 2018 % 9.39 Lakhs) due in respect of FY 2018-19 ('Y 2017-18) reporting
period had not been paid to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end of the respective reporting periods.

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates the following unfunded defined benefit plans:
Post Employment Medical Benefits
The Company provides certain post-employment health care benelits to superannuated employees at some of its locations. In terms of the plan, the
retired employecs can avail free medical check-up and medicines at Company's facilities.
Ex-Gratia Death Benefit
The Company has a defined benefit plan granting ex-gratia in case of death during service. The benelit consists of a pre-determined lumpsum
amount along with a sum determined based on the last drawn basic salary per month and the length of service.
Retirement Gift
The Company has a defined benefit plan granting a pre-determined sum as retirement gift on superannuation of an employce.
Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is primarily governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are
in continuous scrvice for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service
and salary at the retirement date
Pension Benefits
The Company has a defined benefit pension plan. Employees who are in continuous service lor a period of fifteen years are eligible for pension. The
level of benelits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at the retirement date

Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:
Investment risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end
of the reporting period of government bonds.
Interest risk (discount rate risk):
A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability.
Mortality risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during
and after the employment. Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) ultimate table has been used in respect of the above. A change in mortality rate
will have a bearing on the plan's liability.
Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.
Demographic risk
This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The
cffect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligations is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount
rate and vesting criterion.
Withdrawals
Actual Withdrawals providing higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rate at subscquent valuations can impact plan's
liability.

Principal actuarial assumptions for all the unfunded

As at As at

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.40% 7.70%
_Expected rate of salary increase (p.a.) - Management 7.00% 7.00%

5.00% -



Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
Note:

1. The estimates of future salary increases considered take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Demographic assumptions:

Mortality table

Withdrawal rate (p.a.) (age 21 to 44 years)
Withdrawal rate (p.a.) (above 45 years of Age)

As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-18

Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08)

Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:

Service Cost

Current Service cost

Past Service cost

Net interest expense

Component of defined benefit costs recognized in profit or loss

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability :

Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from changes in {inancial assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from experience adjustment

Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income

Total

Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08)

2.50% 2.50%
1.00% 1.00%
% in Lakhs
As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
3.96 22.89
0.53 42.00
10.15 10.29
34.64 75.18
- 25.16
7.25 (31.33)
16.13 (47.41)
23.38 (53.58)
58.02 21.60

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in "Employee benefits expense” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefits plans as follows:

Particulars

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation
[Fair value of plan asscts
Funded status (deficit)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligations

Service cost

Interest cost

Acquisition credit/(cost)

Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustment

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

% in Lakhs

As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-18

(177.75) (137.49)
(177.75) (137.49)
% in Lakhs

As at As at

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

137.49 120.99
24.49 64.89
10.15 10.29
(5.29) :

- 25.16
725 (31.33
16.13 @47.41)
(1247 (5.10)
177.75 137.49

AN
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Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,
while holding all other assumptions constant

Particulars As at 31-Mar-19 As at 31-Mar-18
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (-/+0.5%) 13.19 (11.82) 11.98 (10.606)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) (7.42%) 6.65% (8.71%) 7.75%
Growth Rate (-/+0.5%) (9.10) 12.65 (10.39) 11.56
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 5.12% (7.11%) 7.55% (8.41%)
Mortality Rate (-/+1 year) - 0.43 -0.28 0.28
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.00% (0.24%) 0.20% (0.20%)
Withdrawal Rate (-/+5%) 043 (26.44) 5.68 (22.37)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) (0.24%) 14.87% (4.13%) 16.27%

The expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation by respective end of financial year's (valued on undiscounted basis) are as
follows:

(X in Lakhs)

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Within | Year 5.53 3.21
Between | - 2 years 37.44 3.89
Between 2 - 3 years 437 22.34
Between 3 - 4 years 522 8.12
Between 4 - 5 years 6.22 6.11
Beyond 5 Years 48.61 49.68
107.39 90.35

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

The average duration of the defined benefit plan 8.1 years 8.1 years

obligation represents average duration for active members
(based on discounted cash flows)

Contingent Liabilities
The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

Capital Commitments
As on reporting date there are no capital commitment.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2019: ¥ 42.87 Lakhs (Previous year X 54.81 Lakhs).
Amount spent during the year ended 3 1st March, 2019 % 42.99 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 55.05 Lakhs).

% in Lakhs

Paid Yet to be paid Total

1) Construction/acquisition of any assets - - -
) o) (-)
i) On purposes other than (i) above 41.05 1.94 4299
(55.05) -) (55.05)

iif) Details of related party transaction

- Contribution during the year ended 3 1st March, 2019 % G i
) ) o)

- Payable as at 31st March, 2019 - & -
(=) &) =)

E i 'Ifljgu(r;é in.brackets pertain to the previous year




Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements

41.

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated 28th February, 2019 on Provident Fund (PF) on the
inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PF contribution as well as its applicability of effective date. The Company is consulting I .egal counsel
for further clarity and evaluating its impact on its {inancial statement

42.  Approval of financial Statements
The Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 were approved by board of directors and authorised for issue on April 16, 2019
As per our report of even date Ior and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP Tata Power Trading Company Limited
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